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Directorate-General for Internal Policies of the Union 

Directorate for Citizens’ Rights and Constitutional Affairs 

 

 
 

 

 

Open call for tender  

 

IP/C/JURI/FWC/2019-001 

 

for the award of a multiple framework service contract in three 

(3) Lots for the provision of external expertise on Regulatory and 

policy issues in the fields of 

Judicial cooperation in civil matters (Lot 1), 

Company Law (Lot 2), 

Intellectual Property Law (Lot 3) 

 

 

QUESTIONS RECEIVED UNTIL 21 January 2019  
 

 
Brussels, 23 January 2019 

 

 

Ref.:  Contract notice n° 2018/S 233-531595 

 

Until 21 January 2019, the European Parliament's services have received the following 

questions and have responded as follows: 

 

1. I would like to ask for following clarifications in relation to the Annex IV 

Financial offer: 

 

- Should we fill in only the Table 1: Fixed daily rates for research personnel or 

also the Tables 2-4 for model price calculation for different research papers and 

Table 5 for model price calculation for support of European Parliament events with 

external experts? 

 

https://ted.europa.eu/TED/notice/udl?uri=TED:NOTICE:531595-2018:TEXT:EN:HTML


 

2 

As foreseen in section 14.2.1 of the Rules of Tendering, for Tables 2-5, “the number of days 

and total cost are only estimates at this point: the tenderer is required to describe, as part of 

the methodology, the foreseen realistic combination of staffing and number of working 

days for each type of service”, therefore you should also fill in Tables 2-5. The evaluation of 

price will, however, only be based on the daily rates as given in Table 1. 

 

- In case we need to fill in the Table 5 for model price calculation for support of 

European Parliament events with external experts could you kindly clarify: 

 

a. Should we define the fee per 1 working day for each type of cost? 

b. In case we need to specify number of needed working days, could you 

please clarify what would be the duration and the type of the events, so 

that we can make our calculations? 

c. Regarding the Costs for external experts, should we define only one daily 

fee rate or should we differentiate? If the latter, should we differentiate 

according to the years of experience (senior/junior) or according to some 

other criterion?    

 

a. In Table 5, for your own research staff, the daily rate introduced must be the same as the 

daily rate given in Table 1. For the external experts you might propose for a workshop, please 

also define a daily rate and a number of working days (which, multiplied, give a subtotal, and 

all together a total estimated price for an event with external experts). Again, as Tables 2-4, 

these are estimates which will be used to evaluate your methodology, but which will not be 

evaluated financially. 

b. An event with external experts typically is an event of 3-4 hours, in which each expert will 

present during 20-30 min, and should then be available for the question and answer session. 

Therefore experts are required to be present in total during 5-6 hours at the European 

Parliament’s premises, plus they will have to travel for the event, and to prepare a briefing 

and/or powerpoint for the presentation, please see section 4.1.4 of the Global Terms of 

Reference. 

c. It is up to you to decide whether you would like to differentiate or not. Typically external 

experts are chosen according to their experience on the subject. Please also be aware that as 

the figures you define here are only estimates, you are free for a future reopening of competition 

for an external event to then introduce the appropriate daily rate e.g. according to the seniority 

of experts, and you are not bound by the daily rates you quote here, except for the fact that the 

daily rate you introduce must be minimum that of a researcher (please see Table 5 in Annex 

IV, Financial Offer). 

-------- 

 

2.   Regarding the above mentioned tender contract, we will like to clarify some issues 

refering to the minimum requirements (Section 13.4.2 of the Rules for tendering):  

 

1. Could you please clarify/define what do you mean by “Academic experience”? Is 

this an activity exclusively refered to “teaching at the university”? If yes, is this tender 

seeking for an university/academic research team? or if the mínimum requirements are 

met, can a Law Firm perform the service? 

 

The main point of this selection criterion regarding “researchers” is that the members of the 

research team need to have some kind of professional or academic experience (of a minimum 
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of three years) obtained after a qualifying exam (“graduation”). We would therefore not be 

able to take into account students who, before their bachelor degree of any kind, work for a 

professor and would help him write assignments for the European Parliament. 

Therefore, not only people teaching at university are eligible, and as mentioned in section 14.1 

of the rules of tendering, when allotting points for the quality of a tender, for “composition of 

the research team”, a variety of academic disciplines and varied professional 

experience/background will be valued highly. 

 

2. What do you mean by “Research contract”? 

 

Research contracts must be contracts awarded to the tenderer by a separate (public or private) 

body, to deliver expertise to that body, which consists of the systematic investigation into and 

study of materials and sources in order to establish facts and reach new conclusions. 

Thus, a pure marketing contract would e.g. not be considered a research contract. 

Hereby the tenderer can prove that he/she is capable to undertake research, as according to 

section 3 of the Global Terms of Reference, the objective of the framework contract is to make 

“technical and scientific expertise rapidly available” to the Committee. 

 

3. Must the “publishing record” requested come from scientific research journals? 

 

As indicated on p. 19 of the Rules of Tendering, the publishing record need to be proven by “a 

compilation of publications of the staff planned for the execution of the services on relevant 

issues in the academic press carried out in the past five (5) years.” 

In that respect, “academic press” primarily eliminates tenderers who have only published in 

daily or weekly newspapers with a more political take on current issues; it is important that a 

scientific (academic) approach is visible in these articles. It is up to tenderers to assess whether 

the different journals or series their research staff has published in demonstrate a scientific 

approach. 

 

4. What do you mean by “Scientific/academic distinction”? 

 

“Scientific/academic distinction” means that your work has been recognised by another 

academic and/or professional body. As indicated on p.19 of the Rules of Tendering, this can 

be demonstrated by furnishing proof of membership in academic research networks or think-

tanks or other indications for scientific excellence such as awards, grants for research projects 

and similar. A list of memberships/grants is sufficient; we do not need to receive a written 

confirmation of the body in question. 


